
 

 

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM 
 

Thursday 3 March 2022 at 7.00pm 
Spotland Methodist Church, Rooley Moor Road,  

Rochdale OL12 7ES 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
  

   

1.   Welcome, Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct    
   

2.   Greater Manchester Police    
   

3.   Traffic Survey - Rooley Moor Road    
   

4.   Approval of the minutes of the Spotland & Falinge Area 
Forum meeting held on Thursday 9 December 2021  

 
 
   

5.   Open Forum (an opportunity for local residents to comment 
on issues in the Ward)  

 
 
   

6.   Members/Ward Funds    
   

7.   Councillor Updates    
   

8.   Date and time of the next meeting   

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct

It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following 
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members.  The code of conduct will 
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.

Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions 
to:

• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed

• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to

reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive

behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting

Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may

cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be

disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.

Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity

and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against

• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying

Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or

influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards

and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position

Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a

political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum

• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.

Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of

conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action.  The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.

• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.

• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary Page 2

Agenda Item 1



SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 9 December 2021 

 
PRESENT:   Councillor Rana, Councillor Faisal and 40 members of the public. 
 
OFFICERS:  PC Giblin, PCSO Robinson and G.Finch (Township and Engagement 
Officer) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Martin Greenwood, Jon Lane, Gary Chapman, Dan 
Mason, Dave Bromsgrove – all ESG Trading Limited and Tom Andrews, becg. 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Massey, 7 members of the public and Sgt 
Walsh. 
 
WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT 
167  
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and reminded members of the need to 
adhere to the Code of Conduct for the duration of the meeting. 
 
Apologies had been received from seven residents, Councillor Massey and Sgt 
Walsh. 
 
A minutes silence was held in respect of Surinder Biant who has sadly died. Surinder 
served the Ward as a Councillor from 2010-2018 and served as Mayor of Rochdale 
between 2015 and 2016. 
 
TBA UPDATE - REPRESENTATIVES FROM ESG TRADING LIMITED WILL BE 
ATTENDING TO PROVIDE AN UPDATE 
168  
Martin Greenwood, the Managing Director of ESG Trading Limited introduced himself 
as the new owner of the TBA site and explained that the purchase of the site was 
completed in October 2021. 
 
Martin explained that he has a team of in house experts who collectively have over 
80 years’ experience of dealing with remediation of complex brownfield sites. In 
addition, external specialist will be contracted to assist with the remediation process. 
It was explained that the aim is to remediate the site to facilitate development by July 
2024. However it was reiterated that ESG Trading Limited are not linked to any 
developer or house builder at this stage.  
 
It was explained that over the coming weeks survey work will begin and residents 
may notice increased activity across the site.  This vital survey work will inform the 
remediation strategy which will be agreed with regulators.  No remediation work will 
begin without all relevant approvals being in place. 
 
It was also stressed that ESG are fully committed to operate in an open and 
transparent manner. They intend to comply with all regulatory requirements and have 
already made contact with the Environment Agency, Health and Safety Executive 
and Natural England. It was also explained that a meeting had also taken place with 
the Chief Executive of Rochdale Borough Council. 
 
ESG are also aware of the level of interest from the local community about the site. 
Whilst they do not necessarily have all of the answers at the moment, it was 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



explained that over the coming weeks they will be introducing themselves to local 
residents and will take an open and transparent approach to information sharing. It 
was explained that a web site has been developed where further information and 
details will be provided. In addition the local community will be able to submit 
questions via this site and a response will be provided – 
enquiries@spoddenpark.com 
 
A question and answer session followed: 
 
Question. 
  
It was mentioned that the completion date for site remediation is July 2024. Because 
of this will there be any restrictions for ramblers in the area? 
 
Response. 
 
A great deal of work is required in the Woodlands Road area to make it safe 
therefore it will be necessary to close the road for a significant amount of time which 
will impact upon ramblers. Work is due to commence in this area in January/February 
and finish in September. However consideration could be given to opening the area 
at weekends. 
 
Question. 
 
- Are there any plans to remove the site’s security fence?  
- What will be happening to trees on the site? 
- How will the buildings be demolished? 
- What will the site be used for following remediation? 
 
Response.     
 
There is no intention to remove the safety fence. 
 
There is no intention to remove healthy trees. However dangerous and diseased 
trees will be removed. Trees will be replaced at a ratio of 1:2.25. It should also be 
stated that the site is subject to a blanket Tree Preservation Order. 
 
Plans at present are to demolish the building in a controlled manner. However there 
is the option to cover the building if deemed necessary following further investigation. 
 
At this stage future plans for the site are unknown. ESG are remediation specialist 
not developers. However it is possible that an outline planning application will be 
submitted for mixed use (commercial/residential)  

 
Question 
 
A resident commented that ESG are undertaking a costly exercise yet are unsure 
what will happen to the site. 
 
Response 
 
 It was explained that ESG are in the early stages of the project. A great deal of work 
is required to understand the site better. At this stage it is not possible to say 

Page 4



definitively what the site will be used for. ESG are remediation specialists not 
developers. However an outline planning application is a possibility. 
 
Question 
 
-What are costs of the survey? 
-What are the costs of remediation? 
-What is the time scale for the project? 
-What will the site be used for bearing in mind a previous planning application          
was submitted for 650 residential properties? 
 
Response 
 
It was explained that a range of extensive surveys will be undertaken to fully assess 
the site. Remediation cost have been estimated to be in the region of £20 million. 
The timescale for the project is to complete by July 2024. 
 
It was acknowledged by the new owner that he was aware of a previous application 
that was submitted for 650 houses and a nursery. It was also explained that ESG 
have employed a traffic management company to look at the site with a view of 
identifying new access roads. Having said this it was reiterated that at this moment in 
time the future use of the site was not known. 
 
Question 
 
What is the purpose of introducing 3m of clay near to the river bank? 
 
Response 
 
It is hoped that the introduction of the clay together with other initiatives will help to 
reduce water infiltration and reduce river bank erosion. It was also explained that no 
detailed plan with regards to this has yet been submitted and discussions with the 
Flood Risk Officer are ongoing. 
 
Question 
 
Can you guarantee that you are genuine with your intentions to engage with the 
community? 
 
Response. 
 
ESG are committed to openness, transparency and community engagement. It was 
explained that a public forum will be held in March/April to provide an update. 
 
It was acknowledged that the previous owners where not open in sharing information, 
however ESG stressed that they should not be judged by the actions of the previous 
owners. Wherever possible information and data will be shared and published on the 
website. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Question. 
 
It was reported that a previous survey did not find any asbestos. Can this be 
explained? 
 
Response. 
 
ESG cannot comment on this report, however it was acknowledged that asbestos 
has been found on the site. 
 
It was reiterated that ESG will be undertaking a variety of surveys, above and below 
ground to fully understand the extent of contamination. External specialist contractors 
will be brought in to help with these investigations. It was also explained that past 
employees of TBA had been contacted to help with local intelligence of the site. 
 
Question 
 
What ‘environmental’ considerations are being taken into consideration? 
 
Response 
 
ESG will endeavour to create a positive environmental / ecological balance on the 
site. 
 
Wherever possible damaged and diseased trees will remain on site to create a 
natural habitat and consideration will be given to creating wildflower meadows. 
 
It was acknowledged that there are bats on the site and it is ESG’s intention to 
introduce safe habitats/environments for bats. 
 
ESG are open to any ideas from the community. 
 
Question 
 
How can you guarantee that all asbestos will be removed from the site? 
 
Response 
 
ESG are committed to removing all asbestos from the site. A variety of extensive 
surveys will be undertaken, above and below the ground to understand the extent of 
the problem.  
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPOTLAND & FALINGE AREA FORUM 
MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY 5 MARCH 2020 
169  
The minutes of the area forum meeting held on Thursday 5 March 2021 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE 
170  
PC Giblin and PCSO Robinson attended the meeting for this item and informed 
forum members of the following issues: 
 
Theft from motor vehicle. 
 
A known offender has been detained and is currently in custody for numerous 
offences, including one theft from motor vehicle. 
 
Since the last forum meeting we have seen a reduction in theft from motor vehicles. 
Crime prevention patrols and awareness advice has continued in the affected areas 
due to the successful reduction.  
 
Burglary  
 
Since our last forum burglaries did drop due to Covid.  
 
Following lockdown burglaries did increase around Spotland Road and Brotherod. A 
local known male was eventually arrested and is now serving 3 years in prison.  
 
Another burglar who was operating around Meadowview / Martins Lane area 
targetting the elderly was arrested and is on remand awaiting sentencing.  
 
Three residential burglaries were reported during October/November. 
 
Residents were reminded that if they require a home visit for security advice they 
should contact a member of the local neighbourhood team. 
 
Business burglaries were on the increase during October / November. Seven 
burglaries in total were reported. A male has been arrested and remanded in custody 
charged with a number of offences. Evidence is also being gathered and a warrant is 
out for the arrest of another known suspect.  
 
Anti-social behaviour - hot spot areas 
 
A reduction in ASB around Spotland Methodist Church and Ravendale Close has 
been experienced. This is due to problem solving working alongside local Councillors 
and Rochdale Council: Extra security and fencing is in place around the Methodist 
Church. Regular police patrols have helped to identify the youths which has resulted 
in home visits being conducted to speak with parents. Some of the youths identified 
have also been placed on the Youth Offending Team's priorities list. The youths were 
also encouraged to join weekly football sessions held by Rochdale FC every 
Saturday night which has had a positive outcome for the youths.  
 
Denehurst Park.  
 
Reports of mopeds being used in an anti-social manner resulted in a moped being 
seized from a known local youth. 
 
Vehicles Seized 
 
Numerous vehicles have been seized locally. Many of which have been used in 
crime, for example drug dealing or on cloned plates. GMP have also recovered a 

Page 7



large number of stolen vehicles that were taken from the Bury area and located near 
the top of Rooley Moor Road. These vehicles have been sent for forensic checks. 
 
If you would like to make GMP aware of any suspicious vehicles please contact 
PCSO Robinson. 
 
Speeding concerns throughout the Spotland area. 
 
 The Neighbourhood Speed Watch Scheme has been undertaken on four occasions 
since our last Forum. These have taken place on Mellor Street, Rooley Moor Road 
near Royds Arms pub & and twice on Edenfield Road near to Cutgate precinct. 
These operations were conducted late evening. .This did lead to numerous drivers 
being fined and points added to their licence, with one vehicle being seized. It is 
GMP’s intention to undertake similar operations in the future.  
 
Drug Dealing 
 
Spotland Road / Clover Street are highlighted as the most active drug dealing 
hotspots. As a consequence high-vis patrols have been increased to reassure the 
public. 
 
Following information being received numerous drug dealers have been arrested, 
with pool cars / cloned cars also being seized.  
 
In addition to this GMP’s Challenger Team have charged ten local men with 56 
offences. 
 
Robberies along Spotland Road area 
 
A partnership approach involving GMP, Rochdale Council and local Councillors has 
resulted in CCTV being installed on Spotland Road. This has been installed to help 
act as a deterrent and reduce robberies and record any future incidents. High-vis 
patrols have also been increased to reassure the public. 
 
Residents raised the following issues 
 
-Concerns were raised about dangerous driving on Rooley Moor Road, near to the 
cattle grid which has resulted in a horse being injured and a dog killed. It was 
stressed that this is also a popular area for walkers.  
 
It was also commented that a traffic survey has recently been undertaken in this 
vicinity which may help to establish if speeding is a problem in the area. It was also 
explained that it might be difficult to introduce any type of measure to traffic calm the 
area because it is thought to be in a conservation area. 
 
GMP noted the concerns raised.  
 
- A resident asked why there was a lack of PCSO’s in the Shawclough area? 
 
In response GMP stated that patrols will be happening..  
 
-Members of the public have noticed drug dealing around the Spotland Road area 
and experienced noisy car exhaust which they believe to be illegal. 
 

Page 8



GMP are aware of drug dealing in the Spotland Road area. It was accepted that 
noisy exhaust are a problem but one which is difficult to combat. However this 
concern has been noted. 
 
-Concerns were raised about fireworks being set off late at night. It was also asked if 
this is a sign that drug dealers are signalling a drugs drop off? 
 
GMP acknowledged that fireworks being set off late at night is a problem, especially 
at this time of the year. There is no evidence to suggest that these incidents are 
linked to drug dealing. 
 
-A resident asked what is the most effective way to report incidents to GMP? 
 
GMP advised residents to use live chat. 
 
-A resident thanked the agencies involved in the recently funded project aimed at 
tackling off-road bikers on Rooley Moor Road which has been a success.  
 
GMP supported this view and commented that the initiative had helped to support 
Operation Dragster. 
 
DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 
171  
Spotland Methodist Church – Thursday 3 March 2022, commencing 7pm 
 

Page 9


	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions, Apologies and Code of Conduct
	4 Approval of the minutes of the Spotland & Falinge Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 9 December 2021

